
 

 

City of Alvin, Texas 
Paul Horn, Mayor 

 
Adam Arendell, Mayor Pro-tem, District B Keith Thompson, District C 
Brad Richards, At Large Position 1 Roger E. Stuksa, District D 
Terry Droege, At Large Position 2 Gabe Adame, District E 
Scott Reed, District A  

 
 

ALVIN CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 
 (Council Chambers) 

 

Alvin City Hall, 216 West Sealy, Alvin, Texas 77511 
Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting that will require special services please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 281-388-4255 or 
droberts@cityofalvin.com 48 hours prior to the meeting time.  City Hall is wheel chair accessible and a sloped curb entry is available at the east and 
west entrances to City Hall.  
 

 

NOTICE is hereby given of a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, to 
be held on Thursday, December 3, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at: City Hall, 216 
W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas. 

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: An item(s) may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda for full discussion by the request of a member of Council.  Item(s) removed will 
automatically become the first item up for discussion under Other Business. 
 
A. Approve minutes of the November 19, 2015 City Council workshop meeting.  
 
B. Approve minutes of the November 19, 2015 City Council regular meeting.  
 

5. OTHER BUSINESS:   
Council may approve, discuss, refer, or postpone items under Other Business. 

 
A. Consider variance request for the property owners at 404 Lulac Street to waive the 

building setback requirement of Chapter 21, Section 37(a) of the Code of Ordinances. 
 
B. Consider final plat for Chicken Express, being a 0.627 acre tract (located at 2510  Bypass 

35 South formerly Whataburger) of land out of the H.T.& B.R.R Company Survey No. 13, 
abstract 225, being a portion of that tract of land conveyed to East Bay Partners, LTD. in 
volume 98, page 18625, Deed Records, Brazoria County, Texas. 

 



AGENDA - 2 -                     December 3, 2015 
 

 

C. Consider final plat for Kendall Lakes Section 4, being a subdivision of 17.501 acres 
(located near Highway 35 North) of land located in H.T. & B.R.R Company Survey, 
Section 40, abstract 482, City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
D. Consider Ordinance 15-BB; amending Chapter 21, Subdivisions and Property 

Development, by adding a new section 21-42.1; allowing for a fee in lieu of sidewalk 
installation to the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas; and setting forth other 
provisions related thereto. 

 
6. REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER 

A. Review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 
 
B. Items of Community Interest. 

 
7. REPORTS FROM COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Pursuant to S.B. No. 1182, City Council Members may make a report or an announcement about items of community interest 
during a meeting of the governing body. No action will be taken or discussed. 

 
A. Announcements and requests from Council members.  

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

I hereby certify that a copy of this notice was posted on the City Hall bulletin board, a place convenient and readily 
accessible to the general public at all times, and to the City’s website: www.alvin-tx.gov, in compliance with Chapter 
551, Texas Government Code on MONDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2015 at 3:00 P.M. 
 

(SEAL)       __________________________________ 
       Dixie Roberts, City Clerk 

 
 

Removal Date:______________________ 
 

** All meetings of the City Council are open to the public, except when there is a necessity to meet in Executive Session 
(closed to the public) under the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. The Council reserves the right to 
convene into executive session on any of the above posted agenda items that qualify for an executive session by publicly 
announcing the applicable section of the Open Meetings Act, including but not limited to sections 551.071 (litigation and 
certain consultation with the attorney), 551.072 (acquisition of interest in real property), 551.073 (contract for gift to city), 
551.074 (certain personnel deliberations), or 551.087 (qualifying economic development negotiations). 

 





MINUTES 
  CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 

216 W. SEALY STREET 
 CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP  

THURSDAY NOVEMBER 19, 2015 
6:15 P.M. 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 
Workshop Session at 6:15 P.M. in the Downstairs Conference Room at City Hall, with the 
following members present: Mayor Paul A. Horn, Mayor Pro-tem Adam Arendell, 
Councilmembers: Gabe Adame, Brad Richards, Scott Reed, Roger Stuksa, and Keith Thompson.   
 
Staff members present: Sereniah Breland, City Manager; Junru Roland, Assistant City 
Manager/CFO; Dixie Roberts, City Clerk; Larry Buehler, Economic Development Director; Robert 
Lee, Police Chief; Michelle Segovia; City Engineer. 
 
WORKSHOP ITEM 
 

Discuss State Highway 6 Access Management. 
Michelle Segovia, City Engineer presented information to City Council regarding the access 
management plans from the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) for the installation of 
medians along State Highway 6 (SH6).  Ms. Segovia reviewed several comments and areas of 
concern recently addressed in a letter sent to TxDOT: 
 

 Increase the length of the left turn lane from State Highway 6 east bound to Texas Business 
35 north bound.  

 Provide left turn access for east bound traffic on State Highway 6 at the Dilling Street 
intersection  

 Provide a full median cut at the Heritage South Development located along the north side of 
State Highway 6. 

 Provide left turn access for east bound traffic on Highway 6 to the shopping center. 
 Provide a full median cut accommodate future development at the southeast corner of the 

State Highway 35 by-pass and State Highway 6 intersection. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mayor Horn adjourned the meeting at 6:45 p.m. 
 
PASSED and APPROVED this ______ day of ________________, 2015. 
 
 
        __________________________  
          Paul A. Horn, Mayor  
ATTEST: ___________________________  
                  Dixie Roberts, City Clerk 
  
 
 



MINUTES 
  CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 

216 W. SEALY STREET 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

THURSDAY NOVEMBER 19, 2015 
7:00 P.M. 

 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 
regular session at 7:00 P.M. in the Council Chambers at City Hall, with the following members 
present: Mayor Paul A. Horn, Mayor Pro-tem Adam Arendell, Councilmembers: Gabe Adame, 
Terry Droege, Brad Richards, Scott Reed, Roger Stuksa, and Keith Thompson.   
 
Staff members present: Sereniah Breland, City Manager; Bobbi Kacz, City Attorney; Junru 
Roland, Assistant City Manager/CFO; Dixie Roberts, City Clerk; Robert Lee, Police Chief; 
Michelle Segovia; City Engineer, Brian Smith, Public Services Director; Dan Kelinske, Parks & 
Recreation Director. 
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor Horn gave the invocation.   
 
Council member Richards led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag. 

 
Council member Reed led the Pledge to the Texas Flag. 
  
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

 
Mayor to present a proclamation to Alfred Froberg; declaring November 20, 2015 as Strawberry 
Day.  
Mayor Horn presented a proclamation to Alfred Froberg for his recent induction into the Brazoria 
County Junior Achievement Business hall of fame and declared November 20, 2015 as Strawberry 
day in Alvin. 
 
Mayor to present Governor Proclamation to the Alvin Police Department. 
Mayor Horn presented the Governor’s Proclamation to Police Chief Lee in support of Police 
Officers. 
 
Street Department/Code Enforcement annual update; Brian Smith. 
Brian Smith, Public Service Director, gave an update on Street Department projects.  Kacey Roman 
provided a status report on the Code Enforcement Department.   
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Approve minutes of the November 5, 2015 City Council workshop meeting.  
Council member Stuksa moved to approve the minutes of the November 5, 2015 City Council 
workshop meeting.  Seconded by Council member Droege; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 
 
Approve minutes of the November 5, 2015 City Council regular meeting.  
Council member Adame moved to approve the minutes of the November 5, 2015 regular City 
Council meeting.  Seconded by Council member Droege; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 



MINUTES - 2 -                     November 19, 2015 
 
PETITIONS OR REQUESTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
There were no petitions or requests from the public.   
 

REPORTS FROM CITIZENS BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES 
No reports were given. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
There were no public hearings. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
 
Consider Ordinance 15-W; repealing the sales tax exemption on telecommunication services and 
applying the City’s local sales tax to telecommunication services in accordance with Section 
321.210 of the Texas Tax Code; second reading. 
City Council approved first reading of this ordinance on 11/5/15.  On 08/26/2015, City Council approved the 
engagement of Vybranz LLC to audit the City’s tax related costs and expense areas for reduction, recovery, or revenue 
generation.  Vybranz LLC has apprised staff of a provision that went into effect on October 1, 1987 -- under Section 
321.210 of the Texas Tax Code.  State law exempts telecommunication services from local sales taxes, but allows the 
governing bodies of local taxing jurisdictions to override the exemption by voting to impose sales tax on these services.  
According to Section 321.210 of the Texas Tax Code, the governing body of a municipality may repeal the application 
of the sales tax exemption for telecommunication services sold within the municipality. 

 
Consider Ordinance 15-Z; amending Chapter 2 Administration, Article IIA of the Code of 
Ordinances, City Manager authority; second reading. 
City Council approved first reading of this ordinance on 11/5/15.  The proposed changes simplify and clarify the City 
Manager’s authority granted by Council; including the following: 
•  Clarifies that the City Manager has authority to make purchases as established by the purchasing manual adopted by 

Council. 
•  Delegates authority to the City Manager to grant temporary street closures for the purposes of festivals, parades, etc. 

 
Consider Ordinance 15-T; repealing Ordinance 12-L, whereby the City Council adopted the City of 
Alvin Travel Policy; second reading. 
City Council approved first reading of this ordinance on 11/5/15.  We are proposing to adopt the new travel policy via 
resolution because a resolution is used when the governing body is establishing a position or policy of a city and an 
ordinance usually regulates persons or property and is generally of a more permanent nature (i.e., law).  The prior 
travel policy was adopted by ordinance, thus it requires an ordinance to repeal the existing ordinance. 

 
The major proposed Travel Policy changes include: 
•  Granting Department Heads the authorization to approve travel and travel-related expenditures for their employees. 
•  City Manager authorization for travel/training expenditures for Municipal Judges. 
•  Mayoral approval for travel/training for members of council, commissions, boards, committees, City Manager, and 

City Attorney. 
•  City Manager approval for out-of-state travel. 
•  Increasing the minimum destination miles for overnight lodging for City related business (from 25 miles from City 

Hall to 50 miles from City Hall). 
 

Consider Ordinance 15-Y; amending the City’s Purchasing Policy and Procedures Manual for the 
purpose of clarifying certain sections, updating provisions to comply with changes in the state law; 
and adopting the City of Alvin Purchasing Policy and Procedures Manual; second reading. 
City Council approved first reading of this ordinance on 11/5/15.  Article VII, Section 11 of the City Charter requires a 
review of the City’s purchasing policy to determine consistency with federal and/or state law.  Staff  has reviewed the 
City’s current purchasing policy, and is recommending amendments to the current policy to clean up the flow, 
aesthetics, and grammar throughout the document; and to put the City in line with current local government practices, 
as well as changes in state law. 



MINUTES - 3 -                     November 19, 2015 
 
Council member Droege moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.  Seconded by Council 
member Arendell; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS:   
Discuss agreement with Enterprise Fleet Management Vehicle Leasing Program for the lease of 
non-emergency city operated vehicles. 
Staff is proposing entering into an agreement with Enterprise for the lease of non-emergency  City operated vehicles.  
The agreement includes the lease of vehicles and reducing the replacement time frame, maintenance provided by local 
business, and greater return at the end of lease compared to current auction sells.  Through the agreement, Enterprise 
has shown savings to the City in all aspects of the agreement and an updated fleet. 
 
Ms. Breland introduced representatives from Enterprise who led the discussion regarding the 
leasing program.   

 
Consider Professional Services Agreement with Morris, a Huitt-Zollars Inc. company, in an amount 
not to exceed $28,000 for the downtown planning task force; and authorize City Manager to sign. 
The intent of the project is to develop a vision for the revitalization of Downtown Alvin.  Morris will facilitate the 
Downtown Planning Task Force and city staff to provide urban planning services for downtown revitalization.  The 
estimated schedule for the services is approximately 4 months.  The estimated fee for services is $24,500 plus estimated 
travel costs of $300.  So far, the following individuals have been recommended to serve on the citizen task force: Chad 
Dudley, Chad Gormly, Chris Hartman, Fernando Valdes, Henry Dillmann, Johanna McWilliams, John Barron, Johnn 
Wennerstrom, Steve Adams, Tom Stansel, KAB Representative, Debbie Nance, Missy Jordan, Chris Ochoa, Paul 
Stanton and Joe Schneider.  
 
Council member Reed moved to approve professional services agreement with Morris, a Huitt-
Zollars Inc. company, in an amount not to exceed $28,000 for the downtown planning task force; 
and authorize City Manager to sign.  Seconded by Council member Arendell; motion carried on a 
vote of 7 Ayes.   
 
Reconsider variance request from Palm Harbor Villages, Inc. to the outdoor storage requirement of 
Chapter 35, Section 34(4) of the Code of Ordinances, for a manufactured home sales lot to be 
located at 1875 N. State Highway 35 Bypass (1.67 acres formerly used as a manufactured home 
sales lot by Kevin Murphy).   
This request went before City Council on November 5, 2015 and was denied.  November 9, 2015, Mr. Mittelstadt 
submitted a letter stating their proposal for the wrought iron fence as an alternative to the ordinance’s screening 
requirement along the Bypass 35 corridor.  

 
The Engineering Department received the original variance request letter on October 9, 2015 from Mr. Tom Mittelstadt 
Regional Vice President for Palm Harbor Villages, Inc.  Mr. Mittelstadt is proposing to place a manufactured home 
sales lot on 1.67 acres of land located at 1875 N. State Highway 35 Bypass where Mr. Murphy had a similar business 
several years ago. In order to make this project feasible Mr. Mittelstadt has requested a variance to Chapter 35, 
Section 34(4) of the Corridor Land Use Ordinance that requires outdoor storage of inventory to be screened from view 
of the corridor. The 10-12 manufactured homes that would be displayed for sale on the property would be considered 
inventory under the ordinance. 

 
On October 20, 2015, the City Planning Commission considered the variance request from Palm Harbor Villages, Inc. 
and recommended approval of the variance by a 4 to 3 vote after receiving a brief presentation by Palm Harbor’s 
Regional Vice President. The Commission Members that voted against the variance were opposed to the placement of 
this type of business on one of the City’s main corridors. 

 
Council member Arendell moved to approve the variance request from Palm Harbor Villages, Inc. 
to the outdoor storage requirement of Chapter 35, Section 34(4) of the Code of Ordinances, for a 
manufactured home sales lot to be located at 1875 N. State Highway 35 Bypass (1.67 acres 



MINUTES - 4 -                     November 19, 2015 
 
formerly used as a manufactured home sales lot by Kevin Murphy).  Seconded by Council member 
Reed; motion failed on a vote of 5 Noes; with Council member’s Arendell and Reed voting Aye.   
 
Consider Ordinance 15-Q; amending Chapter 2 Administration, of the Code of Ordinances, Council 
Meeting provisions; as amended; second reading. 
City Council approved first reading of this ordinance as amended on 11/5/15.  Council asked that the wording limiting 
citizen comments to items listed on the agenda be removed.  The ordinance was approved on first reading as amended 
with this change.  The items being submitted for change within the administrative ordinance were discussed with city 
council during the council retreat held September 19, 2015.  Listed below are the major amendments being submitted 
within Chapter 2, Article II Administration:   
 
Article II, City Council, Section 2-21.  Meetings of city council – significant amendments: 
 Revising the sentences regarding alternate meeting dates to clarify that council may approve alternate dates for 

regular meetings due to holidays and other conflicting dates.   
Article II, City Council, Section 2-23.  Order of business at meetings – significant amendments: 
 Making the order of business items listed on the city council agenda nonexclusive, thus allowing staff the flexibility of 

not including on the agenda headings of categories not being discussed; such as ‘public hearings’ and ‘presentations 
and proclamations’, if there are none.  This change will also allow minutes to be placed on the consent agenda for 
approval. 

 Changing the day that city council will receive the agenda and council packets to seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
scheduled meeting.  State statute says that agendas for public meetings must be posted seventy-two (72) hours in 
advance of the meeting. Current practice is to post agenda’s and send out the agenda packet to members of city 
council one week in advance.  This change will align the city’s process with the Texas Open Meetings Act and will 
provide more time to process information for the agenda packet.  City Council will receive a “draft” agenda the 
week before the Thursday meeting. 

Article II, City Council, Section 2-24.  Rules of procedure – significant amendments: 
 Council asked that the wording limiting citizen comments to items listed on the agenda be removed.  The ordinance 

was approved on first reading as amended with this change.  The wording has been removed from the ordinance as 
requested.  A new public comment card has been created.  Those wishing to speak before city council will fill out the 
comment card and turn into the city clerk before the start of the meeting.  The speaker will receive three (3) minutes 
instead of five (5) minutes to make their comments. The city clerk will maintain the time and notify the speaker when 
time is up.  The presiding officer will have discretion as to how many public comments will be allowed.  

 Changing the requirement for two (2) readings of ordinances. This change will allow for faster enactment of 
legislation.  This change does not require the second reading.  City Council may always place an item on the agenda 
for a second reading.   

 

Council member Stuksa moved to approve Ordinance 15-Q; amending Chapter 2 Administration, of 
the Code of Ordinances, Council Meeting provisions; as amended; second reading.  Seconded by 
Council member Thompson; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.   
 
Consider Ordinance 15-X; amending the City of Alvin 2014-15 Fiscal Year-End budget by 
increasing (decreasing) certain expenditures and increasing (decreasing) certain revenues to the 
individual budget accounts in all funds set forth in the attached Exhibit A. 
Each fiscal year-end, the City amends the budget to appropriate expenditures which occurred during the year.  Reason 
being, under certain circumstances, staff has more definite cost information at year-end.  FY15 has ended and staff 
needs to make budget adjustments as a way to put the final FY15 budget in line with actual (approved and/or 
authorized) expenditures for financial reporting purposes.   These adjustments include increases and/or decreases in 
budget appropriations related to actual expenditures and revenues. Per the City’s auditor’s recommendation, the City 
should do a batch budget amendment at fiscal year-end to capture expenditures and/or revenues from the year that 
require a budget amendment. 
 
Council member Droege moved to approve Ordinance 15-X; amending the City of Alvin 2014-15 
Fiscal Year-End budget by increasing (decreasing) certain expenditures and increasing (decreasing) 
certain revenues to the individual budget accounts in all funds set forth in the attached Exhibit A. 
Seconded by Council member Richards; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.   

 



MINUTES - 5 -                     November 19, 2015 
 
Consider Resolution 15-R-21; authorizing the creation of the Gulf Coast Regional 9-1-1 Emergency 
Communication District under the administration of the Houston-Galveston Area Council (HGAC) 
for the counties of: Brazoria, Chambers, Colorado, Liberty, Matagorda, Walker, Waller, and 
Wharton.   
The City of Alvin’s 9-1-1 system is funded from the monthly $0.50 9-1-1 service fee identified by telephone accounts. 
This fee is collected by the phone carrier and then paid directly to the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts, which 
collects 7% of the revenue as “administrative fees.” Further fees or divertments are made or taken as the funds work 
their way through appropriations and ultimately to HGAC, which oversees their use.  According to HGAC, only 40%-
70% of 9-1-1 fees collected in our area are returned to our area. The creation of a Gulf Coast Regional 9-1-1 
Emergency Communication District, administered by HGAC, would cause those collected fees to be paid directly to 
HGAC for use in the District in which they were collected; thereby eliminating the loss of 30%-60% of designated 
funds. The net result will be more funds available to upgrade/repair our local 9-1-1 system.   

 
Council member Thompson moved to approve Resolution 15-R-21; authorizing the creation of the 
Gulf Coast Regional 9-1-1 Emergency Communication District under the administration of the 
Houston-Galveston Area Council (HGAC) for the counties of: Brazoria, Chambers, Colorado, 
Liberty, Matagorda, Walker, Waller, and Wharton.  Seconded by Council member Droege; motion 
carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.  

 
Consider Resolution 15-R-29; casting votes for the Board of Directors of the Brazoria County 
Appraisal District. 
At the October 1, 2015 meeting, City Council nominated Tommy King as a candidate to serve on the Brazoria County 
Appraisal District (BCAD) Board of Directors.  The board is composed of five members who serve two-year terms, all 
of which expire December 31, 2015.   

 
Each governing body within Brazoria County is allotted a certain number of votes to cast toward the nominated 
candidates on the ballot.  The City of Alvin has been allotted 75 votes. The governing body of the taxing unit may cast 
its vote for one candidate or distribute the votes among any number of the nominated candidates.  Each voting unit 
must vote by written resolution and submit to the Chief Appraiser before December 15, 2015.  

 
In 2013, the City of Alvin nominated and cast their votes for William Hasse.  Mr. Hasse serves as a current member of 
the Board, but does not wish to continue his service.  However, his name was placed on the ballot.  
Ballot: 

1. William (Bill) Hasse  2. Tommy King  3. Rubye Jo Knight  4. Gail Robinson  5. Glenn Salye  6. Susan Spoor  7. Bob Welch 

 
Council member Reed moved to approve Resolution 15-R-29; casting 75 votes for Tommy King for 
the Board of Directors of the Brazoria County Appraisal District.  Seconded by Council member 
Richards; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.  

 
Consider Resolution 15-R-27; adopting the City of Alvin Purchasing Card Policy and Procedural 
Manual providing for an effective date, and setting forth other related matters. 
Efficiencies in the City’s purchasing process are gained through the use of purchase cards.  The following are 
situations where the use of purchase cards will allow for better productivity and savings: 

 
• Local vendors are paid on a timelier basis 
• May increase speed in obtaining materials 
• Fewer checks are written 
• Purchases can be directly traced to the cardholder 

 
This policy is intended to be consistent with the City’s Purchasing Policy, and allows the City to maintain the controls 
necessary for such card program.  In addition, this policy establishes regulations for the use of city purchase cards in 
order to maintain a clear accounting for purchases made with these cards.  These guidelines will reduce the potential 
misuse of cards and provide employees with a flexible and convenient method to make purchases for the City of Alvin. 

 



MINUTES - 6 -                     November 19, 2015 
 
The Assistant City Manager/Chief Financial Officer in consultant with Department Heads and the City Controller will 
determine which personnel will be assigned cards and any restrictions that will pertain to the individuals’ cards.  Refer 
to Schedule A for a current list of employees who have been issued cards.   
 
Council member Stuksa moved to approve Resolution 15-R-27; adopting the City of Alvin 
Purchasing Card Policy and Procedural Manual providing for an effective date, and setting forth 
other related matters. Seconded by Council member Thompson; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.  
 
Consider Resolution 15-R-28; adopting the City of Alvin Travel Policy, providing for an effective 
date, and setting forth other related matters.   
The City’s Travel Policy was adopted by Ordinance 12-L on March 15, 2012.  We are proposing to adopt the new 
travel policy via resolution because a resolution is used when the governing body is establishing a position or policy of 
a city and an ordinance usually regulates persons or property and is generally of a more permanent nature (i.e., law).  

 
The major proposed Travel Policy changes include: 
• Granting Department Heads the authorization to approve travel and travel-related expenditures for their 
 employees. 
• City Manager authorization for travel/training expenditures for Municipal Judges. 
• Mayoral approval for travel/training for members of council, commissions, boards, committees, City Manager, 
 and City Attorney. 
• City Manager approval for out-of-state travel. 
• Increasing the minimum destination miles for overnight lodging for City related business (from 25 miles from City 

Hall to 50 miles from City Hall). 
 
Council member Reed moved to approve Resolution 15-R-28; adopting the City of Alvin Travel 
Policy, providing for an effective date, and setting forth other related matters.  Seconded by Council 
member Droege; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.  
 
REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER 
 
Review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 
Ms. Breland reviewed the preliminary list for the December 3, 2015 City Council meeting. 

 
Items of Community Interest. 
Ms. Roberts reviewed items of community interest.   
 
REPORTS FROM COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Pursuant to S.B. No. 1182, City Council Members may make a report or an announcement about items of community interest during 
a meeting of the governing body. No action will be taken or discussed. 
 
Announcements and requests from Council members.  
 
Council member Reed wished everyone a happy and safe Thanksgiving. 
 
Council member Arendell announced that the Alvin Volunteer Fire Department open house will be 
held on December 11 and 12, 2015 at the main fire station. He further requested that the corridor 
ordinance be turned into something else, and requested that staff review right away.  
 
Council member Richards wished his wife a happy 49th anniversary. 
 
Council member Droege announced the Home for the Holiday festivities well begin on December 4 
at Wellborn Cinema at 6 p.m. with a visit from Santa and activities for the kids and the showing of 



MINUTES - 7 -                     November 19, 2015 
 
“Elf” and on December 5, 2015 from 10 a.m. to 6 p.m. there will be activities at National Oak Park 
ending with a light parade.  
 
Council member Adame congratulated Council Member Richards and his wife on their anniversary. 
He announced that a public hearing will be held on December 1, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. at the Senior 
Center on the proposed Thoroughfare Plan.    
 
Council member Stuksa also congratulated Council Member Richards and his wife on their 49th 
anniversary and he wished everyone a happy and safe Thanksgiving holiday.    
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Council member Adame moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:26 p.m. Seconded by Council member 
Droege; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.  
 
 
PASSED and APPROVED this ______ day of ________________, 2015. 
 
 
        __________________________  
          Paul A. Horn, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: ___________________________  
                  Dixie Roberts, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 
Sum
prop
City
fron
the 
pav
wel
sinc
 
The
201
 
 
 

Fund

Acco

Lega
 
 
Sup

 
Re

 

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   
perty owner
y Code of O
nt of their ho
front 25’ bu

vement. The 
ll as, to prov
ce they do no

e Planning C
5.  The Com

ding Expec

ount Numb

al Review R

pporting d
 Varianc
 Aerial M
 Site and
 Sec. 21-

 

ecommend

: Engine

m:   Consid
buildin

  ☐Ordinance

On Novem
s of 404 Lul

Ordinances. 
ome located 
uilding setb
Homeowne

vide protect
ot have a gar

Commission 
mmissioner v

cted: Rev

ber:  

Required: 

ocuments
e Request L

Map of the S
d Structural P
-4 

dation:   M
at
 

Age

eering 

der a varian
ng setback re

e    ☐Resolutio

ber 5, 2015
lac, for a wa
The Homeo
at 404 Lula

ack, howeve
rs are wanti

tion from th
rage.  

voted 6 to 
voting agains

venue  

N/A  

attached: 
etter 
ite 
Plans for the

Move to appr
404 Lulac S

enda 

Meetin

nce request f
equirement o

n    ☐Contract/

5 the Engin
aiver to the 2
owners are p
ac Street. Th
er the neare
ng to constr
e weather w

1 to approv
st the reques

Expenditur

Amo

Required

e Porte Coch

ove the buil
Street. 

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   1

Cont

for the prop
of Chapter 2

/Agreement   ☐

neering Depa
25’ front buil
proposing to 
he Porte Coc
est edge will
ruct this add
when enterin

ve this varia
st did not sta

re N/A

ount:

X    Date 

ere 

lding setback

mmen

12/3/2015 

tact: Mich

perty owner
1, Section 3

☐ Public Hearin

artment rece
lding setback
 construct a

chere, as pro
l still be 33

dition to prov
ng and exitin

ance request
ate a reason f

 Budge

Completed

k variance a

ntary

helle Segovi

s at 404 Lu
7(a) of the C

ng    ☒ Discuss

eived a var
k required b

a 20’ x 24’ P
oposed,  will
’ from the e
vide protect
ng the front

t at their me
for their no v

eted Item: 

d: Novembe

as requested 

y 

ia, City Engi

ulac Street t
Code of Ordi

sion & Direction

riance reque
by section 21
Porte Coche
l encroach 8 
edge of the 
tion for their
t door of the

eeting on N
vote. 

Yes No

er 24, 2015 

by the prop

ineer 

to waive the
inances. 

n 

est, from the
1-37(a) of the
ere along the

feet into the
Lulac Stree

r vehicles, a
eir residence

November 17

o  N/A

erty owners 

e 

e 
e 
e 
e 

et 
s 
e 

7, 

 



 
 

Re

Re

 

 

eviewed by De

eviewed by Ci

If 
up
th

epartment He

ity Attorney, if

f approving, 
pon traffic c
he vicinity pu

ead, if applica

f applicable ☒

state City C
conditions an
ursuant to Se

able ☒ 

☒ 

Council’s “Fi
nd upon pub
ec. 21-4 of th

 Revie

 Revie

indings” of 
blic health, s
he City Code

ewed by Chie

ewed by City 

the probable
safety, conv
e. 

ef Financial O

Manager ☒ 

e effect of th
venience and

fficer, if applic

his variance 
d welfare in 

cable ☐ 





!(!(

!( !(

!(

404

403 409

404-B

LULAC ST

FM
 52

8

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AEX,
Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

·

404 Lulac St Bldg Setback Variance Rev Date: 11/12/2015
Engineering Dept/ GIS

Legend
Existing ROW Lines







 

  Page 1 

Sec. 21-4. - Variances.  

Upon written request, city council may authorize a variance from this chapter. An applicant for a 
variance shall pay a non-refundable fee, in an amount provided for in the fee schedule in chapter 28.  

In granting a variance, the council shall prescribe those conditions it deems necessary or desirable 
to the public interest. In making the findings hereinabove required, the council shall take into account the 
nature of the proposed use of the land involved, the existing use of the land in the vicinity, the number of 
persons who will reside or work in the proposed subdivision, and the probable effect of such variance 
upon traffic conditions and upon public health, safety, convenience and welfare in the vicinity.  

Any variance request shall first be reviewed by the planning commission, with a recommendation to 
city council.  

(Ord. No. 02-AA, § 1, 6-20-02; Ord. No. 06-WW, § 3, 12-21-06; Ord. No. 12-UU, § 2, 11-1-12)  



De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 
Sum
revi
prop
cha
 
The
 
 

Fund

Acco

Lega
 
 
Sup

 
Re

 
 

Re

Re

 

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   O
iew. The pro
perty to sell
in. 

e City Planni

ding Expec

ount Numb

al Review R

pporting d
 Final Pl

 

ecommend

eviewed by De

eviewed by Ci

: Engine

m:   Consid
35 Sou
13, abs
in volu

  ☐Ordinance

On October 3
operty is loc
l the buildin

ing Commis

cted: Rev

ber:  

Required: 

ocuments
at of Chicke

dation:   M
25
Co
to
Co

epartment He

ity Attorney, if

Age

eering 

der final plat
uth formerly
stract 225, b
ume 98, page

e    ☐Resolutio

31, 2015 the 
cated at 251
ng (former W

sion unanim

venue  

N/A  

attached: 
en Express. 

Move to appr
510  Bypass
ompany Sur

o East Bay P
ounty, Texas

ead, if applica

f applicable ☒

enda 

Meetin

t for Chicken
y Whataburg
eing a portio
e 18625, Dee

n    ☐Contract/

Engineering
10 Bypass 3
Whataburge

mously appro

Expenditur

Amo

Required

ove final pla
s 35 South f
rvey No. 13, 
Partners, LT
s. 

able ☒ 

☒ 

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   1

Cont

n Express, b
ger) of land 
on of that tra
ed Records, 

/Agreement   ☐

g Departmen
5 South and
r site) to Ch

oved the plat 

re N/A

ount:

X    Date 

at for Chicke
formerly W
abstract 225

TD. in volu

 Revie

 Revie

mmen

12/3/2015 

tact: Mich

being a 0.627
out of the H
act of land c
Brazoria Co

☐ Public Hearin

nt received t
d is being p
hicken Expr

t at their mee

X Budge

Completed

en Express, 
Whataburger) 

5, being a po
ume 98, pag

ewed by Chie

ewed by City 

ntary

helle Segovi

7 acre tract (
H.T. & B. R
conveyed to 
ounty, Texas

ng    ☒ Discuss

the Final Pla
platted in ord
ress, a north

eting on Nov

eted Item: 

d: Novembe

being a 0.62
of land out

ortion of that
ge 18625, D

ef Financial O

Manager ☒ 

y 

ia, City Engi

(located at 2
R Company
East Bay Pa
s. 

sion & Direction

at of Chicken
der for the o
h Texas bas

vember 17, 2

Yes No

er 24, 2015 

27 acre tract
t of the H.T
t tract of lan

Deed Record

fficer, if applic

ineer 

2510  Bypass
y Survey No
artners, LTD

n 

n Express fo
owner of the
sed fast food

2015. 

o  N/A

t (located at 
T. & B. RR 
nd conveyed 
ds, Brazoria 

cable ☐ 

s 
. 
. 

r 
e 
d 

X 



SOUTH BYPASS 35

300' R.O.W.

EAST BAY PARTNERS LTD.
V. 98, P. 18625

EAST BAY PARTNERS LTD.
V. 98, P. 18625

EAST BAY PARTNERS LTD.
V. 98, P. 18625

S 21°09'45" E  195.00'

N 21°09'45" W
  224.69'

N 68°50'15" E  130.00'

C1

H. T. & B. RR COMPANY SURVEY No.

13, ABSTRACT 225

0.627 ACRES
LOT 1, BLOCK 1

PT. OF V. 98, P. 18625
D.R.B.C.T.

CHICKEN EXPRESS ADDITION

NOVEMBER 10,  2015

LOT 1, BLOCK 1

BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS
AN ADDITION TO THE CITY OF ALVIN,

110 A PALO PINTO STREET - WEATHERFORD, TEXAS 76086
(P) 817-594-0400 - (F) 817-594-0403

FINAL PLAT OF

35

NELSON RD.
TALLOW

 ST.

CIRCLE W
AY

NELSON RD.

369

JEPHSON LN.

STONE DR.

BEING THAT CERTAIN 0.627 ACRES (27,331.9± SQ. FT.) TRACT OF LAND OUT OF THE H. T. & B. RR COMPANY
SURVEY No. 13, ABSTRACT 225, BEING A PORTION OF THAT TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO EAST BAY
PARTNERS LTD. IN V. 98, P. 18625, REAL RECORDS, BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS & BEING FURTHER
DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A SET 1/2" IRON ROD CAPPED "CARTER WFORD" AT THE END OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT
WITH A RADIUS OF 3819.72 FEET AND A CHORD OF  S 55°58'15" W 133.35 FEET, IN THE NORTH CALLED
RIGHT OF WAY OF SOUTH LOOP HIGHWAY 35, AT A COMMON CORNER OF THAT CERTAIN EAST BAY
PARTNERS LTD. TRACT AS DESCRIBED IN V. 98, P. 18625, REAL RECORDS, BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR
THE SOUTHWEST AND BEGINNING CORNER OF THIS TRACT. WHENCE THE INTERSECTION OF THE WEST
LINE OF TRACT 39 AND NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SOUTH LOOP HIGHWAY 35 IS CALCULATED TO BEAR
S 62°28'00" W  53.58 FEET, S 61°37'00" W  65.00 FEET & S 60°25'00" W  74.65 FEET.

THENCE ALONG SAID EAST BAY PARTNERS LTD TRACT THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES:
N 21°09'45" W  224.69 FEET TO A SET 1/2" IRON ROD CAPPED "CARTER WFORD", FOR THE NORTHWEST
CORNER OF THIS TRACT.
N 68°50'15" E  130.00 FEET TO A SET 1/2" IRON ROD CAPPED "CARTER WFORD", FOR THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF THIS TRACT.
S 21°09'45" E  195.00 FEET TO A SET 1/2" IRON ROD CAPPED "CARTER WFORD", IN THE NORTH CALLED
RIGHT OF WAY OF SAID SOUTH LOOP HIGHWAY 35, AT THE BEGINNING OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, FOR
THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THIS TRACT.

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT AN ARC DISTANCE OF 133.36 FEET, TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING.

NOTES:

1) PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN A FLOOD ZONE OR FLOOD HAZARD ZONE
ACCORDING TO THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP (FIRM) PREPARED BY THE
FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA), MAP NO. 48039C0165H,
DATED JUNE 5, 1989.

2) ALL CORNERS ARE SET 1/2" IRON RODS, CAPPED - "CARTER-WFORD", UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

3) SPECIAL NOTICE:  SELLING A PORTION OF THIS ADDITION BY METES AND BOUNDS
IS A VIOLATION OF CITY ORDINANCE AND STATE LAW, AND IS SUBJECT TO FINES
AND WITHHOLDING OF UTILITIES AND BUILDING PERMITS.

4) UNDERGROUND UTILITIES WERE NOT LOCATED DURING THIS SURVEY. CALL
TEXAS 811 AND/OR UTILITY PROVIDERS BEFORE EXCAVATION OR CONSTRUCTION.

5) NO ABSTRACT OF TITLE OR TITLE COMMITMENT WAS PROVIDED TO THIS
SURVEYOR. RECORD RESEARCH DONE BY THIS SURVEYOR WAS MADE ONLY FOR THE
PURPOSE OF DETERMINING THE BOUNDARY OF THIS PROPERTY AND OF THE
ADJOINING PARCELS. RECORD DOCUMENTS OTHER THAN THOSE SHOWN ON THIS
SURVEY MAY EXIST AND ENCUMBER THIS PROPERTY.

6) BEFORE CONSTRUCTION PLEASE CONSULT ALL APPLICABLE GOVERNING
ENTITIES REGARDING RULES & REGULATIONS, THAT MAY AFFECT CONSTRUCTION
ON THIS PROPERTY. (I.E. ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL COMMITTEE, MUNICIPAL
DEPARTMENTS, HOME OWNERS ASSOC., ETC.)

7) THIS TRACT IS CURRENTLY NOT UNDER ZONING REGULATIONS.

8) SIDEWALKS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AS PART OF THE ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING
PERMIT FOR EACH TRACT.

9) NO BUILDING PERMITS WILL BE ISSUED UNTIL ALL STORM DRAINAGE
IMPROVEMENTS, WHICH MAY INCLUDE DETENTION, HAVE BEEN CONSTRUCTED.

SUBDIVISION APPROVED

________________________________________________________________________________________________
MAYOR

________________________________________________________________________________________________
COUNCILMEMBER

________________________________________________________________________________________________
COUNCILMEMBER

________________________________________________________________________________________________
COUNCILMEMBER

________________________________________________________________________________________________
COUNCILMEMBER

________________________________________________________________________________________________
COUNCILMEMBER

________________________________________________________________________________________________
COUNCILMEMBER

________________________________________________________________________________________________
COUNCILMEMBER

________________________________________________________________________________________________
CITY ENGINEER

________________________________________________________________________________________________
CITY CLERK

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT I, KYLE RUCKER, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I PREPARED THIS PLAT FROM AN
ACTUAL AND ACCURATE SURVEY OF THE LAND AND THAT THE CORNER MONUMENTS
SHOWN THEREON AS "SET"WERE PROPERLY PLACED UNDER MY PERSONAL SUPERVISION
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ALVIN.

_____________________________________________________________________________________
KYLE RUCKER, REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NO. 6444.
CARTER SURVEYING AND MAPPING, 110A PALO PINTO ST. WEATHERFORD, TX 76086
OCTOBER 2015 - JN151045FINALPLAT

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA

I, _________________________________________________________ COUNTY CLERK OF BRAZORIA
COUNTY, TEXAS, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT WITH ITS
AUTHENTICATION WAS FILED FOR REGISTRATION
IN MY OFFICE ON _____________________________________ 2015, AT
_____________________________________ O'CLOCK ______M, IN
DOCUMENT NUMBER ________________________________.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, AT ANGLETON, BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS,
THE DAY AND DATE LAST WRITTEN ABOVE.

DEPUTY ____________________________________________ COUNTY CLERK OF BRAZORIA COUNTY,
TEXAS.

SURVEYOR:
KYLE RUCKER, R.P.L.S.
CARTER SURVEYING & MAPPING, INC.
110 A PALO PINTO
WEATHERFORD, TEXAS, 76086
817-594-0400

OWNER/DEVELOPER:
EAST BAY PROPERTIES
DAVID LEBOW
2450 FONDREN ROAD
SUITE 309
HOUSTON, TX 77024

N

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF _________________________

I, DAVID LEBOW, REPRESENTATIVE OF EAST BAY PARTNERS, LTD., OWNER OF THE LAND SHOWN ON THIS
PLAT AND WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED THERETO AND IN PERSON OR THROUGH A DULY AUTHORIZED
AGENT DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC FOREVER, ALL STREETS, ALLEYS, PARKS, WATER COURSES, DRAINS,
EASEMENTS AND PUBLIC PLACES THEREON SHOWN FOR THE PURPOSE AND CONSIDERATION HEREIN
EXPRESSED. THE OWNER DOES HEREBY WAVE ALL CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES OCCASIONED BY THE
ESTABLISHMENT OF GRADES AS APPROVED FOR THE STREETS AND DRAINAGE EASEMENTS DEDICATED OR
OCCASIONED BY US THE ALTERATION ON THE SURFACE, OR ANY PORTION OF THE STREETS OR DRAINAGE
EASEMENTS TO CONFORM TO SUCH GRADES, AND DO HEREBY BIND MYSELF, MY HEIRS, SUCCESSORS AND
ASSIGNS, TO WARRANT AND DEFEND THE TITLE TO THE LAND SO DEDICATED.

WITNESS OUR HAND IN ___________________ (CITY) ___________________ COUNTY, TEXAS, THIS _______ DAY OF
________________, 2015.

__________________________________
DAVID LEBOW

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF _________________________

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, THIS _______ DAY OF _________________, 2015

______________________________________________________________________________
NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR _______________________ COUNTY, TEXAS.

PAUL HORN

BRAD RICHARDS

TERRY DROEGE

SCOTT REED

ADAM ARENDELL

KEITH THOMPSON

ROGER STUKSA

GABE ADAME

MICHELLE H. SEGOVIA, P.E. CFM

DIXIE ROBERTS, TRMC

N

NOT TO SCALE

0.627 ACRES (27,331.9± SQ. FT.) TRACT OF LAND OUT OF
THE H. T. & B. RR COMPANY SURVEY No. 13, ABSTRACT 225,
BEING A PORTION OF THAT TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO

EAST BAY PARTNERS LTD. IN V. 98, P. 18625

SITE

25' BUILDING LINE

C1 3819.72' 133.36' 133.35' S 55°58'15" W 2°00'01"
CURVE RADIUS ARC LENGTH CHORD LENGTH CHORD BEARING DELTA ANGLE

FND. 1/2"

IRON ROD

F TO

AXRET EDE
IGTA RS

S
ET E

S

L

Y OI OS
N A

P

O
EFN

A RL

S

VRS U
D E

R

F TO

AXRET EDE
IGTA RS

S
ET E

S

L

Y OI OS
N A

P

O
EFN

A RL

S

6444

VRS U
D E

R

KYLE RUCKER

JEPHSON LN.



De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 
Sum
Sec
loca
five
 
The
Com
has
 
 
 

Fund

Acco

Lega
 
 
Sup

 
Re

 
 

Re

Re

 

 

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   O
ction 4 for re
ated within t
e previously 

e City Plann
mmission M
. 

ding Expec

ount Numb

al Review R

pporting d
 Final Pl

 

ecommend

eviewed by De

eviewed by Ci

: Engine

m:   Consid
(locate
Section

  ☐Ordinance

On October
eview. This 
the City of A
platted secti

ning Comm
Member Hart

cted: Rev

ber:  

Required: 

ocuments
at Kendall L

dation:   M
ac
Su

epartment He

ity Attorney, if

Age

eering 

der final pla
ed near High
n 40, abstrac

e    ☐Resolutio

r 19, 2015 t
section cons

Alvin (near H
ions totaling

mission unan
tman asked i

venue  

N/A  

attached: 
Lakes Section

Move to appr
cres (located
urvey, Sectio

ead, if applica

f applicable ☒

enda 

Meetin

at for Kenda
hway 35 No
ct 482, City o

n    ☐Contract/

the Engineer
sists of 72 s

Highway 35 N
g 231 residen

nimously app
if the green 

Expenditur

Amo

Required

n 4. 

rove plat for
d near Highw
on 40, abstra

able ☒ 

☒ 

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   1

Cont

all Lakes S
orth) of lan
of Alvin, Br

/Agreement   ☐

ring Departm
single-family
North). The 

ntial lots of w

proved the 
space requi

re N/A

ount:

X    Date 

r Kendall La
way 35 Nort
act 482, City

 Revie

 Revie

mmen

12/3/2015 

tact: Mich

Section 4, be
nd located in
razoria Coun

☐ Public Hearin

ment receiv
y residential
Kendall Lak

which 166 ha

plat at thei
irement had

 Budge

Completed

akes Section
th) of land l
y of Alvin, B

ewed by Chie

ewed by City 

ntary

helle Segovi

eing a subd
n H.T. & B
nty, Texas. 

ng    ☒ Discuss

ved the Fina
l lots, 4 bloc
kes Subdivis
ave homes o

ir meeting o
d been met f

eted Item: 

d: Novembe

n 4, being a
located in H

Brazoria Cou

ef Financial O

Manager ☒ 

y 

ia, City Engi

division of 1
B.R.R Comp

sion & Direction

al Plat of Ke
cks, and 1 re
sion currentl
on them. 

on Novembe
for this secti

Yes No

er 24, 2015 

a subdivision
H.T. & B. RR
unty, Texas.

fficer, if applic

ineer 

17.501 acres
pany Survey

n 

endall Lake
eserve and i
ly consists o

er 17, 2015
ion, which i

o  N/A

n of 17.501 
R Company 

cable ☐ 

s 
y, 

s 
s 
f 

5. 
it 

 







De
 
Ag

 

Typ

 
Sum
by a
uniq
to a
whe
syst
ben
The
used
 
The
Com
only
wish
St. 
case
lot 
stat
and
 
 
 

Fund

Acco

Lega
 
 
Sup

 

epartment:

genda Item

pe of Item:

mmary:   O
adding Secti
que construc
allow a Dev
ere construct
tems, and la

neficial. The 
e fees collect
d to build, m

e Planning C
mmission M
y being ame
hing to cons
/ Sixth St. F
e of in fill de
sizes of pre
ed that they 

d would poss

ding Expec

ount Numb

al Review R

pporting d

: Engine

m:   Consid
Develo
21-42.
provisi

  ☒Ordinance

Ordinance 15
ion 21-42.1;
ction or site 
eloper to pa
tion of a sid
arge mature 
fee would b
ted would be

maintain, or r

Commission
Member Hartm

ended in or
struct homes
From the dis
evelopment 
eviously pla
felt that allo

sibly help to 

cted: Rev

ber:  

Required: 

ocuments

Age

eering 

der Ordinan
opment, of th
1; allowing
ions related 

e    ☐Resolutio

5-BB amend
 allowing fo
constraints. 

ay a fee equ
dewalk is not

trees in the
be based on t
e deposited 
replace sidew

n approved O
man stated th
rder to acco
s on previous
scussion the
construction

atted lots. Co
owing for th
reduce the n

venue  

N/A  

attached: 

enda 

Meetin

nce 15-BB
he Code of 

g for a fee 
thereto. 

n    ☐Contract/

ds Chapter 2
or a fee in lie

The additio
uivalent to th
t feasible or 
e right-of-wa
the City’s m
in a Sidewa
walks within

Ordinance 1
hat he voted 
mmodate re
s platted lots

e consensus 
n of sidewalk
ommission 

he payment o
number of va

Expenditur

Amo

Required

 

 Com
 

ng Date:   1

Cont

; amending
Ordinances,
in lieu of 

/Agreement   ☐

1 Subdivisio
eu of sidewa

on of this sec
he cost of bu
practical du

ay in the lo
most recent an

lk Fund, as 
n the City.  

15-BB 6 vo
against the 

ecent sidewa
s near Willis
seemed to b
ks can be dif
Members th
of a fee in li
ariance requ

re N/A

ount:

X    Date 

mmen

12/3/2015 

tact: Mich

g Chapter 
 City of Alv
sidewalk in

☐ Public Hearin

ons and Prop
alk installati
ction would 
uilding the r

ue to site con
cations whe
nnual concre
established b

otes to 1 at 
ordinance b
alk variance
s St. / Lee St
be that sidew
fficult due to
hat voiced th
ieu of sidewa
ests concern

 Budge

Completed

ntary

helle Segovi

21, Subdi
vin, Texas, b
nstallation a

ng    ☐ Discuss

perty Develo
ion for new 
give the Cit
required sid
nstraints suc
ere the sidew
ete maintena
by this ordin

their meetin
ecause he fe
e requests fr
t. (behind St
walks are ne
o open ditch
heir opinion
alk construc

ning sidewalk

eted Item: 

d: Novembe

y 

ia, City Engi

ivisions an
by adding a n
and setting 

sion & Direction

opment of th
infill develo
ty Engineer 
dewalk for d
ch as open di
walk would 
ance contract
nance, and c

ng Novemb
elt like the or
from the two
tanton’s) and
ecessary, ho

hes, trees, and
ns during th
ction would b
ks. 

Yes No

er 24, 2015 

ineer 

d Property
new section
forth other

n 

he City Code
opments with
the authority

development
itch drainage
be the mos

t bid pricing
could only be

er 17, 2015
rdinance wa
o developer
d near Willi
wever in the
d the smalle

he discussion
be beneficia

o  N/A

e  
h 
y 
s 
e 
st 
g. 
e 

5. 
s 
s 
s 
e 
r 
n 
al 

 



 
Re

 
 

Re

Re

 

 

 Ordinan
 

ecommend

eviewed by De

eviewed by Ci

nce 15-BB 

dation:   M
Pr
sid

epartment He

ity Attorney, if

Move to app
roperty Deve
dewalk insta

ead, if applica

f applicable ☒

prove Ordin
elopment, ad
allation. 

able ☒ 

☒ 

nance 15-BB
dding a new

 Revie

 Revie

B; amendin
w section 21

ewed by Chie

ewed by City 

ng Chapter 
-42.1; allow

ef Financial O

Manager ☒ 

21, Subdiv
wing for a fe

fficer, if applic

visions and 
ee in lieu of 

cable ☐ 



ORDINANCE NO. 15-BB 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS AMENDING 
CHAPTER 21, SUBDIVISIONS AND PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT, BY 
ADDING A NEW SECTION 21-42.1; ALLOWING FOR A FEE IN LIEU 
OF SIDEWALK INSTALLATION TO CHAPTER 21 OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS; AND SETTING FORTH 
OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED THERETO. 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ALVIN: 
 
 

Section 1. That Article III, Section 21 - 42; of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, 

is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
ARTICLE III.   

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBDIVISION AND/OR RESUBDIVISION 
 

. . . 
 
“Sec. 21-42.  Sidewalks, ADA ramps, driveways and driveway approaches. 
 
Sidewalks, Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) ramps, driveways and driveway approaches 
shall be required and shall be constructed in accordance with the City’s design criteria. ADA 
ramps shall be constructed at all street intersections and other locations deemed necessary for 
adequate accessibility. The construction of ADA ramps shall be included in the paving contract 
and are therefore the responsibility of the developer. If not constructed prior to issuance of a 
building permit, sidewalks, driveways, and driveway approaches must be constructed as part of 
the issuance of the building permit for each tract.” 
 
Sec. 21-42.1.  
 

(1) Fee payment in lieu of sidewalk installation. Where a sidewalk is required by the City of 
Alvin Subdivision Ordinance and the installation is not feasible due to construction or 
site constraints, the City Engineer may require the Developer/Property Owner to satisfy 
the sidewalk requirement by payment of a fee to the City’s Sidewalk Fund in lieu of 
installing the sidewalk.  Said payment shall be at the current rate of construction per 
square foot or square yard of sidewalk, and such rate shall be based on the City’s most 
recent annual Concrete Maintenance Contract bid pricing. Once approved by the City 
Engineer payment of the fee shall be rendered at the time of building permit issuance. 

 
(2) Sidewalk Fund.  There is hereby established a special fund for the deposit of all sums 

paid in lieu of sidewalk installation under this section or any preceding ordinance, this 



15-BB                   Page 2 of 2 

fund shall be known as the “Sidewalk Fund”.  Funds shall only be utilized to build, 
maintain, or replace sidewalks within the City. 

 
Section 3.  Severability.   Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 4.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
and publication in accordance with the provisions of Chapt. 52, Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code and the City 
of Alvin Charter. 
 
Section 5.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on first and final reading on the ______day of __________, 2015. 
 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
 
By: ________________________________  By: ______________________________  
      Dixie Roberts, City Clerk         Paul A. Horn, Mayor 
 


	AGENDA 12/03/15
	BOARD MINUTES
	Library Board Min 08/06/15

	CONSENT AGENDA
	CC Min 11/19/15 Workshop
	CC Min 11/19/15 Meeting

	OTHER BUSINESS 
	Variance Request; 404 Lulac
	Variance Request Letter
	Aerial Map
	Site Plan
	Structrual Plan
	Sec. 21-4

	Final Plat; Chicken Express
	Plat

	Final Plat; Kendall Lakes
	Section 4 Final Plat Page 1
	Section 4 Final Plat Page 2

	Ord. 15-BB; Amend Chapter 21; Subdivisions; Sidewalks
	Ordinance 15-BB; Sidewalk Fee in Lieu of





